Public Document Pack

E-mail: comsec@teignbridge.gov.uk
9 August 2021

PLANNING COMMITTEE
A meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Tuesday, 17th August, 2021 in
the Council Chamber, Forde House, Brunel Road, Newton Abbot, TQ12 4XX at
10.00 am

PHIL SHEARS
Managing Director
Membership:
Councillors Haines (Chair), Goodman-Bradbury (Vice-Chair), Bradford, Clarance, Colclough,
H Cox, Eden, Hayes, J Hook, Jeffery, Kerswell, MacGregor, Nuttall, Nutley, Patch, Parker and
Peart

Please Note:The public can view the live streaming of the meeting at Teignbridge
District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv) with the exception where there are
confidential or exempt items, which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public.

AGENDA
Part I

1.

Minutes

(Pages 3 - 18)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting.
2.

Apologies for absence.

3.

Declarations of Interest.
If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination or interests in items

1

on this Agenda, please contact the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.
4.

Public Participation
The Chairman to advise the Committee on any requests received from members of
the public to address the Committee.

5.

Chair's Announcements

6.

Planning applications for consideration - to consider
applications for planning permission as set out below.

7.

a)

21/00829/FUL - Dingley Dell, Teignmouth

(Pages 19 - 26)

b)

21/00846/FUL - 4 Kiln Orchard, Newton Abbot

(Pages 27 - 34)

c)

20/02181/FUL - 49 Old Exeter Street, Chudleigh

(Pages 35 - 46)

d)

20/00639/FUL - Exminster House, Exminister

(Pages 47 - 64)

Appeal Decisions - to note appeal decisions made by the
Planning Inspectorate.

(Pages 65 - 66)

If you would like this information in another format, please telephone 01626 361101 or
e-mail info@teignbridge.gov.uk

2

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 1

PLANNING COMMITTEE
20 JULY 2021
Present:
Councillors Bradford, Clarance, Colclough, H Cox, Goodman-Bradbury, Haines,
Hayes, J Hook, Jeffery, Kerswell, MacGregor, Nuttall, Nutley and Dewhirst
(Substitute)

Members in Attendance:
Councillors Connett
Apologies:
Councillors Eden, Patch, Parker and Peart
Officers in Attendance:
Rosalyn Eastman, Business Manager, Strategic Place
Trish Corns, Democratic Services Officer
Christopher Morgan, Trainee Democratic Services Officer
Public Speakers:
Helen Bellamy
Phil Carrodus
Simon Merritt
Nicole Stacey

51.

MINUTES
It was proposed by Councillor Colclough and seconded by Councillor H Cox that
the minutes be approved as a correct record.
A vote was taken – see attached.
Resolved
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

52.

a)

PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION - TO CONSIDER
APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION AS SET OUT BELOW.
21/00762/FUL - Land at Mamhead (Pages 9 - 10)
The Business Manager gave a presentation on the application to the Committee.

3
1

Planning Committee (20.7.2021)
Public





Speaker, Supporter – Spoke on:
Waiting list for pitches
Other sites in area have waiting lists
Other family members have pitches
No objections from parish

Comments from Councillors included
 The parish only meet annually
 Local plan sets out homes for travelling community within defined
settlements
 6 year land supply of 4 pitches is not being delivered
 Site affects the South Hams SAC
 Site should be closer to schools
 Visibility issues regarding hedge maintenance
 Conditions need to be enforceable which the hedge issue is not
 Contrary to policy WE6
 Should there be a distinction between gypsies and travellers in the local
plan?
 Biodiversity officer supports the application
 How is the delivery of the 5 year land supply implemented?
 Application site could be considered a windfall site
 How will foul drainage be implemented?
 Can bat, bird, and bee boxes be included?
 Is the housing currently used by the applicants culturally appropriate?
The Business Manager spoke on
 No distinction is made between gypsys and travellers but there may be a
focus on, for example, newer members of the community
 Biodiversity Officer supports the application in relation to the areas use by
greater horseshoe bats
 Conditions to assure appropriate lighting
 Hedge removal as a result of discussions
 Policy of south west Exeter in relation to the delivery of land used for the
gypsy and traveller community as well as land delivered in Kingsteignton
and Teigngrace
 Foul drainage is not a planning matter
 Site can be used by the wider gypsy and traveller community
 Condition 8 could include bat and bird boxes
It was proposed by Councillor Haines and seconded by Councillor J Hook that
permission be granted as set out in the report.
A roll call was taken – see attached.
Resolved
That permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

4
2

Planning Committee (20.7.2021)
1. Standard three year time limit
2. Standard plans condition
3. Restriction of occupancy to members of the G&T community
4. Details of the new hedgerow planting shall be submitted to and agreed by
the LPA and the hedgerow then planted prior to the first bringing of the
caravans on to the site.
5. Details of the day room materials shall be submitted and agreed by the LPA
prior to first use on site.
6. Mobile Homes shall conform to definition of a caravan and external materials
and appearance of the caravans shall be limited to either wood or a woodeffect.
7. No external lighting other than motion-activated, low-lumen, directed down
lighting.
8. The development shall proceed only in accordance with the
recommendations of the ecology report.
9. Drainage of the site shall be by soakaways unless otherwise agreed with the
LPA.
10. Visibility splays shall be provided, laid out and maintained in accordance with
submitted plans.

b)

20/00647/MAJ - Indio House (Pages 11 - 16)
The Business Manager gave a presentation on the application to the Committee.
Public




Speaker, Objector – Spoke on:
Loss of MG5 Grassland
Existing fields provide biodiversity
Objector’ QC opinion

Public






Speaker, Objector – Spoke on:
Applicant have not satisfied reasons for deferment
Lack of recent grassland survey
Objections from Town Council
Application does not compliment landscape
Tree officer opposed to application

Public Speaker, Supporter – Spoke on:
 Site allocated for development

5
3

Planning Committee (20.7.2021)






Principle of development is established
Outline permission already granted
QC opinion regarding grassland
Applicant will preserve as much grassland as possible
High quality housing with area of natural play

Comments from Councillors included:
 Objections from Town Council
 Declaration of climate emergency
 Objectors QC provides reasons for refusal
 MG5 grassland not significantly addressed by planning inspector
 QC opinions should be given equal merit
 Objectors QC opinion were not disregarded but summarised in the late
update sheet
 Landscape element of application
 Grassland would be at risk of becoming overgrown if not cut
 Grassland would need to become SSSI for protection
 Inspector dealt with all matters during planning inspection
 Ecology wasn’t raised during outline planning permission at committee
 Consideration of the neighbourhood plan
 Concerns about bat population
 Change of use mitigations
 Drainage issues
 Bat, bird, and bee boxes are needed
 Parking issues
 Refuse storage needs to be enforced
 Solar panels should be used
 Parking cannot be enforced on private drive
 Bovey Tracey plan is a material condition
 Needs to comply with policy LE4
 Ecological concerns should’ve been raised earlier
The Business Manager spoke on:
 Report represents professional opinion from both planning and legal
perspectives
 Reasons of refusal would be difficult to support
 Neighbourhood Plan and NPPF should be used for reasons for refusal
 The emerging Bovey Tracey plan was a material consideration but with
limited weight attached
 Solar panels are not mandated
 Details of carbon reduction measures were included.
The Legal Officer spoke on:
 Members should consider both QC opinions on balance

It was proposed by Councillor Kerswell and seconded by Councillor MacGregor
that permission be refused for the reasons set out by the Town Council.

6
4

Planning Committee (20.7.2021)

A vote was taken – see attached. The vote was lost.
It was proposed by Councillor Haines and seconded by Councillor GoodmanBradbury that permission be granted as set out in the report.
A vote was taken – see attached. The vote was lost.
It was proposed by Councillor Kerswell and seconded by Councillor MacGregor
that permission be refused for the reasons set out by the Town Council as well
as the landscaping.
A vote was taken – see attached.
Resolved
That permission be refused for the following reasons:
1. Loss of MG5 grassland
2. Lack of solar panels
3. Contrary to policy H3 - Provision of discrete cycle storage/ refuse and recycling
storage that is both secure and aesthetically pleasing

4. Contrary to policy H4 - developments of above 10 units to be designed to
maximise walking and cycling and to encourage health benefits which arise from
access to green space
5. Loss of landscape

Note: The decision to refuse the application was against officer
recommendation. The Committee considered this application unacceptable for
the reasons below.
Statement of Reason
The Committee considered this application unacceptable due to the following
reasons
1. Loss of MG5 grassland
2. Lack of solar panels
3. Contrary to policy H3 - Provision of discrete cycle storage/ refuse and
recycling storage that is both secure and aesthetically pleasing

4. Contrary to policy H4 - developments of above 10 units to be designed to
maximise walking and cycling and to encourage health benefits which
arise from access to green space
5. Loss of landscape

53.

APPEAL DECISIONS - TO NOTE APPEAL DECISIONS MADE BY THE
PLANNING INSPECTORATE.
The Committee noted the decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate

The meeting started at 10:00am and finished at 12:00pm.

7
5

Planning Committee (20.7.2021)

Chair
Councillor Mike Haines

8
6

Subject: Minutes

Minute Item 51

Date: 20/07/2021 10:07:16

1

Voters

12

Cllr Bradford-College

Cllr Clarance-Shaldon & S-t-head

Cllr Dewhirst-Ipplepen

Cllr Goodman-Bradbury-DawlishCNE

Cllr H Cox-Ashburton Buckfast

Cllr Haines-Kerswell-w-Combe

Cllr Hayes-NA Bushell

Cllr J Hook-NA Bushell

Cllr Kerswell-Bovey

Cllr MacGregor-Bishopsteignton

Cllr Nutley-Ashburton Buck'leigh

Cllr Nuttall-Kenn Valley

7
9

For

8

Against

0

Abstain

4

This page is intentionally left blank

10

Subject: Mamhead aso

Minute Item 52a

Date: 20/07/2021 10:46:12

1

Voters

14

Cllr Bradford-College

Cllr Clarance-Shaldon & S-t-head

Cllr Colclough-Ambrook

Cllr Dewhirst-Ipplepen

Cllr Goodman-Bradbury-DawlishCNE

Cllr H Cox-Ashburton Buckfast

Cllr Haines-Kerswell-w-Combe

Cllr Hayes-NA Bushell

Cllr J Hook-NA Bushell

Cllr Jeffery-Moorland

Cllr Kerswell-Bovey

Cllr MacGregor-Bishopsteignton

Cllr Nutley-Ashburton Buck'leigh

Cllr Nuttall-Kenn Valley

9
11

For

9

Against

5

Abstain

0

This page is intentionally left blank

12

Subject: Indio Hse BT Refusal

Minute Item 52b

Date: 20/07/2021 12:01:56

1

Voters

14

Cllr Bradford-College

Cllr Clarance-Shaldon & S-t-head

Cllr Colclough-Ambrook

Cllr Dewhirst-Ipplepen

Cllr Goodman-Bradbury-DawlishCNE

Cllr H Cox-Ashburton Buckfast

Cllr Haines-Kerswell-w-Combe

Cllr Hayes-NA Bushell

Cllr J Hook-NA Bushell

Cllr Jeffery-Moorland

Cllr Kerswell-Bovey

Cllr MacGregor-Bishopsteignton

Cllr Nutley-Ashburton Buck'leigh

Cllr Nuttall-Kenn Valley

11
13

For

7

Against

7

Abstain

0

This page is intentionally left blank

14

Subject: Indio Hse BT aso approval
Date: 20/07/2021 12:03:18

1

Voters

14

Cllr Bradford-College

Cllr Clarance-Shaldon & S-t-head

Cllr Colclough-Ambrook

Cllr Dewhirst-Ipplepen

Cllr Goodman-Bradbury-DawlishCNE

Cllr H Cox-Ashburton Buckfast

Cllr Haines-Kerswell-w-Combe

Cllr Hayes-NA Bushell

Cllr J Hook-NA Bushell

Cllr Jeffery-Moorland

Cllr Kerswell-Bovey

Cllr MacGregor-Bishopsteignton

Cllr Nutley-Ashburton Buck'leigh

Cllr Nuttall-Kenn Valley

15
13

For

5

Against

9

Abstain

0

This page is intentionally left blank

16

Subject: Indio Hse BT Refusal
Date: 20/07/2021 12:04:24

1

Voters

14

Cllr Bradford-College

Cllr Clarance-Shaldon & S-t-head

Cllr Colclough-Ambrook

Cllr Dewhirst-Ipplepen

Cllr Goodman-Bradbury-DawlishCNE

Cllr H Cox-Ashburton Buckfast

Cllr Haines-Kerswell-w-Combe

Cllr Hayes-NA Bushell

Cllr J Hook-NA Bushell

Cllr Jeffery-Moorland

Cllr Kerswell-Bovey

Cllr MacGregor-Bishopsteignton

Cllr Nutley-Ashburton Buck'leigh

Cllr Nuttall-Kenn Valley

17
15

For

9

Against

5

Abstain

0

This page is intentionally left blank

18

Agenda Item 6a

PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT
CHAIRMAN: Cllr Mike Haines

APPLICATION FOR
CONSIDERATION:

TEIGNMOUTH - 21/00829/FUL - Dingley Dell , East Cliff
Walk - Widening of access to highway

APPLICANT:

Mrs J Hart

CASE OFFICER

Jennifer Joule

WARD MEMBERS:

Cllr Robert Phipps
Cllr Sylvia Russell

VIEW PLANNING FILE:

https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planning/forms/planning-applicationdetails/?Type=Application&Refval=21/00829/FUL&MN

19

Teignmouth East

21/00829/FUL - Dingley Dell East Cliff Walk Teignmouth Devon TQ14 8TR

¯

Crown Copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100024292

1:575

20

0

0.00325

0

0.005

0.0065
0.01

0.013 mi
0.02 km

1.

REASON FOR REPORT

1.1

This application has been called to Committee by Teignmouth Town Council for the
following reason:
‘The Highway referred to is also a public right of way used by many pedestrians and
cyclists and widening may lead to faster traffic causing a danger to other users.’

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

The application is recommended for approval subject to the following conditions:
1. Standard three year time limit for implementation.
2. Development to proceed only in accordance with the approved plans.
3. There shall be no net loss of hedgerow and/or vegetation as a result of the
development. Prior to the commencement of development, a hedgerow and
vegetation loss and replacement plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. Bat / bird boxes
4. Any new gabion baskets installed at the site at any time must be faced with stone
reclaimed from the site and the material to be used and method of filling of the
baskets shall be agreed with the LPA prior to installation.

3.

DESCRIPTION
Site Description

3.1

The application site comprises an area of highway and retaining wall to the eastern
side of East Cliff Walk in Teignmouth. The site is just north of the railway bridge and
the southern entrance point to East Cliff Park.

3.2

The site is heavily overgrown with vegetation and is not in a usable state.

3.2

The land is owned by the Teign Corinthian Yacht Club. It does not however appear
to have been in active use for some time. Records suggest it has not been used for
in excess of 15 years and its last active use may have been as a compound for
Network Rail.

3.3

There are no protected trees at the site although the vegetation/hedgerow along the
retaining wall is mature and noted by the Biodiversity Officer (please see further
commentary below).

3.4

The site lies just outside the settlement boundary for Teignmouth in the designated
open countryside. It is also designated Undeveloped Coast.

3.5

A similar application was approved in 2012 but not implemented.
Proposed Development

3.6

The application is intended to allow the Yacht Club to make use of the site to the
east of East Cliff Walk and to repair the damaged sections of retaining wall. This
application does not relate to the use of the land behind the walls, which would
likely require separate planning permission to be brought into any active use as it is

21

likely any previous permission for the use of the site has been abandoned through
the passage of time. This will be considered further should an application for the
use of the site be brought forward and applies equally to the construction of any
structures at the site – the Club were informed of this in 2012 in writing.
3.7

It is proposed to widen 8m of the highway by a maximum of 2.5m to create a new
3.5m wide access and install new access gates.

3.8

It is also proposed to replace an existing c. 16m length of retaining wall with gabion
baskets faced in reclaimed stone taken from the existing wall.
Relevant Planning History

3.9

11/03214/FUL - Alterations to existing access (approved but not implemented)
Key Planning Considerations

3.10

3.11

It is considered that the key matters relevant to the determination of this planning
application are:


Design, materials and landscape impact;



Biodiversity protection and enhancement; and,



Highway safety.

Design, Materials and Landscape Impact
The site lies outside the settlement boundary within an area designated as
Undeveloped Coast.
The site has a green appearance and the area is characterised by expansive
coastal views, hedgerows and stone retaining walls – both dressed and rubble
stone.
The proposed alterations are relatively minor in scale and involve an extension to
the highway to form an improved access point as well as the replacement of a 16m
section of wall in need of repair.
It is not considered that the proposal will compromise the landscape character of
the area. As is set out below, there will be replacement hedgerow planting, the
proposed new gabion wall will be faced with stone reclaimed from the site, and the
alterations apply only to the eastern side of the highway. There will be no material
loss of openness, and no impact on the Undeveloped Coast. Gabion baskets can
assimilate over time as pockets within stones allow plants to recolonize.
It is therefore considered that the site will retain its landscape character and the
proposal is in accordance with Policies EN2 and EN2A.

3.10

Biodiversity Impact
The Biodiversity Officer has raised concern with the loss of hedgerow required to
widen the access and repair the retaining wall.

22

A condition has therefore been recommended, as set out above, which requires
replacement planting for any that will be lost, as well as provision for biodiversity net
gain.
With this condition in place it is considered that the proposal will accord with the
requirements of Policies EN8 and EN12.
3.11

Highway Safety
The Town Council have raised concern with the safety of the proposed alterations
as ‘widening may lead to faster traffic causing a danger to other users’.
DCC Highways did not wish to comment on the proposal and referred the Case
Officer to the Standing Advice.
The Case Officer considers that the proposal will not impact highways safety for the
following reasons:
-

It is unusual to encounter such a narrow stretch of road (2.5m in width).
East Cliff Walk at this point is currently so narrow that it is unsafe for any
other road user to meet a car. A cyclist would be forced to dismount and
a pedestrian would be required to press themselves against the boundary
walls and vegetation in order for the car to pass. If a car were to meet a
wheelchair user or pushchair, for example, either user would be required
to return to the nearest wider section of highway in order to pass one
another. This is undesirable and unsafe. The new access gate will
provide what is, in effect, a passing place, which will facilitate access up
East Cliff Walk for the range of users of this stretch of highway;

-

Vehicle speeds are extremely low owing to the narrow nature of East Cliff
Walk and widening of an 8m section is not considered likely to materially
impact vehicle speeds on this section of highway; and,

-

The new access has been provided with a visibility splay to facilitate safe
access.

For these reasons the proposal is considered to accord with Policy S1 and is not
considered to give rise to highway safety concerns or congestion.
4.

POLICY DOCUMENTS
Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033
S1A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
S1 Sustainable Development Criteria
S2 Quality Development
S10 Transport Networks
S22 Countryside
EN2 Undeveloped Coast
EN2A Landscape Protection and Enhancement
EN8 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
EN12 Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows
National Planning Policy Framework

23

National Planning Practice Guidance
5.

CONSULTEES

5.1.

Devon County Council Highways
Devon County Council Highways recommend that the Standing Advice issued to
Teignbridge District Council is used to assess the highway impacts.

5.2

Teignbridge District Council Tree Officer
There are no arboricultural objections to the proposal as no significant trees appear
to be adversely affected.

5.3

Teignbridge District Council Biodiversity Officer
The loss of the wall top hedge habitat, and replacement with wall and palisade
fence would be regrettable for ecological and landscape reasons.
I would recommend that a replacement hedge of locally-appropriate native hedging
species be planted behind the wall. This should be allowed to grow to at least the
height of the top of the palisade fence. It should be allowed to grow partially
through the fence, to soften its appearance.
[Case Officer note – palisade fencing is existing not proposed]

6.

REPRESENTATIONS

6.1.

None received

7.

TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL’S COMMENTS

7.1.

Propose Category B and refer to Devon Rights of Way and Devon Highways.

8.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

8.1

The CIL liability for this development is Nil as the CIL rate for this type of
development is Nil and therefore no CIL is payable.

9.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1

Due to its scale, nature and location this development will not have significant
effects on the environment and therefore is not considered to be EIA Development.

10.

CARBON/ CLIMATE IMPACT

10.1

As a small scale proposal it is considered that the overall carbon/climate impact will
be low.

11.

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

11.1

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This
Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human
Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the
applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been

24

balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through
third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance.
Business Manager – Strategic Place

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6b

PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT
CHAIRMAN: Cllr Mike Haines

APPLICATION FOR
CONSIDERATION:

NEWTON ABBOT - 21/00846/FUL - 4 Kiln Orchard, Newton
Abbot - Erection of a dwelling with parking facilities

APPLICANT:

Mr T Furze

CASE OFFICER

Jennifer Joule

WARD MEMBERS:

Cllr Philip Bullivant
Cllr Mike Hocking

VIEW PLANNING FILE:

https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planning/forms/planning-applicationdetails/?Type=Application&Refval=21/00846/FUL&MN

27

Bradley

21/00846/FUL - 4 Kiln Orchard Newton Abbot Devon TQ12 1PJ

¯

Crown Copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100024292

1:287

28

0

0.0015

0.003

0

0.0025

0.005

0.006 mi
0.01 km

1.

REASON FOR REPORT

1.1

This application has been called to Committee by Cllr Hocking for the following
reasons:
1) Over development of the site.
2) Loss of amenities for the original dwelling – outdoor space by 60%, garage and
parking.
3) Adverse effect on the street scene.

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

The application is recommended for approval subject to the following conditions:
1. Standard three year time limit.
2. Subject to development in accordance with the submitted plans.
3. Provision for biodiversity net gain through the installation of bird and bat
boxes within the new dwelling.
4. Provision of electric vehicle charging point in accordance with Policy 2
NANDP.
5. Boundary treatments to be submitted / levels details / refuse storage
6. Limited PD restrictions on proposed and host property

3.

DESCRIPTION
Site Description

3.1

4 Kiln Orchard is a semi-detached house with a garage within the Broadlands area
of Newton Abbot.

3.2

The existing house forms the eastern end of a terrace of 5 dwellings all of a similar
appearance and size. To the east of the site is a row of six garages, with this site
encompassing the westernmost garage on the row.

3.3

Kiln Orchard is the highway to the front of the dwelling. There is a strip of on-street
parking immediately to the front of the site and extending along the row of garages
to the east.

3.4

Barton Drive is the highway to the rear of the dwelling. Barton Drive also has a
dedicated area of on-street parking immediately to the rear of the site.
Proposal

3.5

It is proposed to demolish the garage and erect a new dwelling in its place. The
dwelling will have two bedrooms and replicate the appearance of the others on the
terrace but with the benefit of a slightly larger rear bedroom and living room to the
rear, lending the proposed dwelling an ‘L’ shape. There is a window on the host
dwelling that will be lost.

29

3.6

The garden of no. 4 will be reduced to the area immediately to the north of the
dwelling, which replicates the arrangement of no.s 2 and 3. The new dwelling will
benefit from a slightly larger rear garden extending to the east of the new house
and behind the existing garages (in separate ownership).

3.7

The new dwelling will meet the Nationally Described Space Standards and will
benefit from one car parking space to the front. The existing dwelling will lose its
garage and car parking space and will be required to park any cars either to the
front or rear of the dwelling within the existing dedicated on-street parking.
Key Planning Considerations

3.8

3.9

It is considered that the key matters relevant to the determination of this planning
application are:


Design and impact on the street scene;



Impact on residential amenity for the proposed and existing dwellings; and,



Highway safety.

Design and Impact on the Street Scene
Concern has been raised with the external appearance of the dwelling and its visual
impact on the street scene.
The Case Officer shared these concerns with the proposal as originally submitted.
The design of the front and rear elevations appeared out-of-keeping with the wider
terrace and immediate neighbourhood owing to the narrow width of the windows
and lack of horizontal cladding to the front elevation.
The Case Officer sought amendments to the proposal to ensure the new dwelling
would replicate the appearance of the others within the terrace. With these
amendments it is now considered that the dwelling will appear as a natural addition
to the terrace and assimilate effectively within the street scene.
From the front, the new dwelling will be stepped back from no. 4 and align with the
position of the existing garage. It will therefore match the existing stepped design of
the terrace. This has the added benefit of facilitating the delivery / maintenance of
an off street parking place. The materials, size and form of the proposal will match
the existing street scene.
From the rear, when viewed from Barton Drive, the proposal will match the window
size, general scale and form of the existing terrace but will appear slightly wider
than its neighbours. This change was made to ensure the new dwelling could meet
the Nationally Described Space Standards. The design of the rear of the dwelling is
considered sufficiently similar to the existing terrace to be in-keeping with the
neighbourhood and appropriate for the street scene.
The proposal is therefore considered in accordance with Policy S2 and a successful
response to the site’s context.

3.10

Impact on Residential Amenity

30

No. 4 Kiln Orchard, the existing or host dwelling, will remain as is but will lose the
eastern part of its garden, its garage and off-street parking space. It will retain a
smaller garden commensurate in size with the gardens of no.s 2 and 3 Kiln
Orchard.
The proposal does not contain any side elevation windows other than at ground
floor level.
It is not expected that there will be any adverse impact on no. 4 or other neighbours
from the perspective of amenity where it relates to natural light, overlooking/privacy
or security. The proposal is therefore considered in accordance with Policy S1.
Whilst it is recognized that no. 4 will lose some of its rear garden space and garage,
a garden will remain which is of a very similar size to the neighbouring dwellings to
the west, and is therefore considered an appropriate and acceptable level of private
outdoor space for no.4. This is however considered to be at the margins of
acceptable amenity space and therefore a condition is proposed to remove
permitted development rights for boundary treatments and rear extensions for both
the existing and proposed dwellings.
Number 4 currently benefits from a rear access gate that could be utilised for
maneuvering refuse bins. No details have been provided for boundary treatments
for the proposed new dwelling and hence these details are proposed to be required
by condition.
3.11

Highway Safety
Teignbridge District Council does not have specific parking standards and so it is
necessary to consider applications against the relevant policies of the Local Plan as
well as any other material considerations.
Road safety and congestion are the key policy tests within Policy S1 and the NPPF
refers to highway safety as the key test at paragraph 111.
The new dwelling will benefit from one car parking space which is considered
acceptable for a modest-sized, two bedroom house. On-street parking immediately
in front of this space will also be available.
The existing dwelling, no. 4, will lose its off-street parking but will retain the ability to
use the on-street parking immediately to the front and rear of the site. The front
garden is of insufficient length to accommodate an off street parking space. Onstreet parking is common in urban areas and is not considered an unsafe
arrangement.
No. 4 is a two-bedroom property and is likely to similarly generate the need for one
or two new cars. When undertaking a site visit the Case Officer observed that there
were spare on-street parking spaces available and it was possible to park in very
close proximity to the site.
It is therefore considered that the additional demand for on-street parking which is
likely to be generated by the proposal could be safely accommodated within the
local highway and does not amount to a reason for refusal of the application.
Conclusion

31

3.12

Newton Abbot is recognised as a sustainable and suitable location for new housing
development. This proposal is considered a successful response to the site which
will assimilate well in to the built environment and make effective use of the plot. It
is therefore not considered overdevelopment and is recommended for approval
subject to the above conditions.

4.

POLICY DOCUMENTS

4.1

The following relevant policies have been considered as part of assessing the
proposed development:
Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033
S1A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
S1 Sustainable Development Criteria
S2 Quality Development
S23 Neighbourhood Plans
S14 Newton Abbot
EN8 to 11 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
Newton Abbot Neighbourhood Plan
National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

5.
5.1.

CONSULTEES
Devon County Council Highways Officer recommended the use of the Highways
Standing Advice.

5.2

No other consultation responses were sought.

6.

REPRESENTATIONS

6.1

One letter of representation has been received objecting to the proposal and stating
that ‘the area is already over developed.’

7.

TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL’S COMMENTS

7.1

The Committee recommended refusal on the grounds of over development, adverse
affect on the street scene and loss of amenity.

8.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

8.1

The proposed gross internal area is 75.3sq.m. The existing gross internal area in
lawful use for a continuous period of at least six months within the three years
immediately preceeding this grant of planning permission is 29.6sq.m. The CIL
liability for this development is £4,457.18. This is based on 45.7 net m2 at £70 per
m2 and includes an adjustment for inflation in line with the BCIS since the
introduction of CIL.

9.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

32

9.1

Due to its scale, nature and location this development will not have significant
effects on the environment and therefore is not considered to be EIA Development.

10.

CARBON/ CLIMATE IMPACT

10.1

It is considered likely that the overall carbon/climate impact of this proposal will be
low due to the small scale nature of the proposal. An informative encouraging the
use of lower carbon construction and technologies will be applied and a condition is
included requiring the provision of EV charging for the new dwelling.

11.

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

11.1

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This
Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human
Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the
applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through
third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance.

Business Manager – Strategic Place

33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6c

PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT
17 August 2021
CHAIRMAN: Cllr Mike Haines

APPLICATION FOR
CONSIDERATION:

CHUDLEIGH - 20/02181/FUL - 49 Old Exeter Street,
Chudleigh - Dwelling

APPLICANT:

Mr & Mrs M Sanders

CASE OFFICER

Jeff Penfold

WARD MEMBERS:

Cllr Lorraine Evans
Cllr Richard Keeling

VIEW PLANNING FILE:

https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planning/forms/planningapplicationdetails/?Type=Application&Refval=20/02181/FUL&MN

35

Chudleigh

20/02181/FUL - 49 Old Exeter Street Chudleigh Devon TQ13 0JX

¯

Crown Copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100024292

1:1,150

36

0
0

0.005
0.01

0.01
0.02

0.02 mi
0.04 km

1. REASON FOR REPORT
Cllr Keeling has requested committee consideration of the application as he considers the
proposal represents a sustainable form of development.
2. RECOMMENDATION
Planning Permission be refused for the following reasons:
1. The proposed dwelling by virtue of its siting within the walled garden and therefore
setting of the Grade II Listed Building ‘The Retreat’, would detract from the
significance of the high stone walls of the garden which form part of said listing and
form an important and positive element of the setting of the listed building. Further,
the proposal would result in an unacceptable level of intensification of the use of the
garden and its structures, creating a major deleterious impact upon the listed
building and its constituent elements and long-established historic context.
As such, the proposal would result in substantial harm to the significance of the
Grade II Listed Building and would consequently detract from the character and
appearance of the Chudleigh Conservation Area.
The proposal fails to accord with LP Policy EN5, Policy CHNDP16 and NPPF
Paragraph 201.
2. The proposal, by virtue of the first floor balcony element and its proximity to the first
floor habitable bedroom of No. 22 Woodway Street being approximately less than
13m distant, is likely to allow for new and direct lines of sight giving rise to
intervisibilty and a loss of privacy to the detriment of the amenity and living
conditions of residents at No. 22. As such, the proposal fails to accord with LP
Policy WE8.
3. The proposal, by virtue of the proposed apex glazing within the rear projection and
side elevation facing Woodway Street, coupled with the proposed wholly glazed
balcony element is considered likely to give rise to an unnecessary and avoidable
amount of light spill which is likely give rise to significant, detrimental visual impacts,
particularly when viewed from the street scene along Woodway Street. As such, the
proposal fails to accord with LP Policies S2, EN2A, EN5 and WE8 and CHNDP5.
3. DESCRIPTION
The Site
3.1. The application site is located to the west side of Old Exeter Road and the east
side of Woodway Street and comprises a detached house and curtilage barn sited
within an old partially walled garden.
3.2. The site contained a number of trees and shrubs and takes access onto Old Exeter
Street. 49 Old Exeter Street is Grade II listed and lies in the Chudleigh
Conservation Area, in which this site is described as being outstanding in its
contribution to the Conservation Area.

37

3.3. The listed house consists of a late 17thC detached dwelling which was updated in
the early 1800’s thus the Georgian appearance. The existing dwellinghouse
consists of painted render with white painted timber Georgian style windows. The
roof is clad using natural slate.
3.4. The application site is located well within the main built-up area / settlement
boundary of Chudleigh, a Bat SAC Landscape Connectivity Zone 2019, a Bat SAC
Sustenance Zone 2019, SAC 4Km Sustenance Zone, Wintering Zone and a Great
Crested Newt Alert Zone.
3.5. The application site also lies within the curtilage of the Grade II Listed Building:
‘The Retreat’.
3.6. Other Grade II Listed Buildings in close proximity include:
-

Glencoe; and

-

Alma House and Railings In Front.

3.7. The

application site is not located within a Flood Risk Zone as identified by the
Environment Agency nor a Critical Drainage Area.

The Proposal
3.8. The application proposes the erection of 1no. dwelling providing 2no. bedrooms
with an open plan kitchen / dining and living room that opens out onto the garden
area. The dwelling is proposed to be used in-part as a home office for home
working.
3.9. The site lies within the walled garden area south of the application site and shall
share the existing access provision from Old Exeter Street and provision provided
for 2no. car parking spaces.
3.10.






The proposed materials / finishes include:
Roof - natural slate & standing seam metal roof
Walls - render/ rubble stone with lime mortar
Green oak framing
Windows/doors - timber flush casement finished in opaque grey
Rainwater goods - zinc 1/2 round gutters.

Principle / Sustainable Development:
3.11.
Within settlement limits, development will be permitted where it is consistent
with the provision and policies of the local plan as set-out in LP Policy S21A.
3.12.
Chudleigh is identified as a sustainable settlement and the application site is
located within close proximity to local services.
3.13.
As such, the proposal is considered acceptable in principle and therefore
accords with LP Policies S21A, EC4 and Policy CHNDP12.

38

3.14.
The key considerations in relation to this proposal therefore relate to its
heritage impacts and the impact the proposed dwelling would have on surrounding
residential amenity.
The Historic Environment:
3.15.
In considering this application and assessing potential impacts of the
development proposal against surrounding heritage assets the following policies,
principles, guidance and recent case law have been considered:
Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (as amended), Section 16 of the NPPF (specifically paragraphs 189-202) The
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) particularly the Section: Conserving
and Enhancing the Historic Environment. The Historic England guidance: The
Setting of Heritage Assets – Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in
Planning: 3.
3.16.
We are under a statutory duty (ss 66 and 72) to give special regard to the
desirability of preserving Listed Buildings or their settings AND to give special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of conservation areas. In addition, the NPPF is u nasally directive in how we
should deal with applications that cause harm to designated heritage assets.
3.17.
The council’s heritage / conservation officer makes the following comments
with regard to this application:
“I have maintained a heritage objection to this application from pre-app in 2018
onwards – the site is the walled garden of a listed building, the high stone walls of
the garden form part of the listing, and the garden enclosed by the walls is an
important positive element of the setting of the listed building (including its garden
walls).
Permission was given in 2019 for the conversion of the little barn / gardener’s store
immediately to the north of the present application site to ancillary residential
accommodation. That was the greatest level of intensification of the use of the
garden and its structures that I felt was acceptable without harm to the significance
of the listed building.
I have an in-principle objection to the loss of the walled garden to residential
development irrespective of the design.
The host listed building is large, and realistically needs a large garden to go with it
to maintain its value in line with its cost of upkeep. Just because the current
occupant doesn’t want a large garden doesn’t mean the house doesn’t need a large
garden to ensure a viable economic future”.
3.18.
In addition to the above, the planning history is a material consideration
when determining planning applications.
3.19.
As such, it is noted that under Refs: 19/00994/FUL and 19/00995/LBC, the
originally submitted applications related to the conversion of an existing barn along
the western boundary to the west of the listed house into ancillary accommodation

39

and sub-division of the planning unit to provide a detached house to the south west
corner, in the area of the walled garden.
3.20.
Following an objection from the council’s conservation officer, and case
officer’s recommendation to refuse, the applicant opted to withdraw the new
dwelling from the proposal and progress only with the conversion of the existing
barn to an ancillary use – for which permission was granted.
3.21.
The council’s concerns over the introduction of a new dwelling in this location
is noted as being communicated before the aforementioned discussions under
Refs: 19/00994/FUL and 19/00995/LBC and as part of pre-application advice Ref:
18/01014/PE of May 2018:
“The dwelling – any dwelling – would obliterate the historical relationship between
the principal residence, the formal carriage access and circulatory front drive, and
the walled garden certainly present by the time of the First Edition County Series
Survey in the 1880s”.
3.22.
Whilst the current revisions to the proposed dwelling are noted in terms of its
efforts to address the previous and significant concerns raised over a number of
years and by numerous officers, the previous concerns and in-principle objections
raised by the council’s heritage / conservation / planning officers still remain
relevant in that the erection of a new dwelling in this location remains
unacceptable.
3.23.
As such, the proposed dwelling by virtue of its siting within the walled garden
and therefore setting of the Grade II Listed Building ‘The Retreat’, would detract
from the significance of the high stone walls of the garden which form part of said
listing and form an important and positive element of the setting of the listed
building.
3.24.
Further, the proposal would result in an unacceptable level of intensification
of the use of the garden and its structures, creating a major deleterious impact
upon the listed building and its constituent elements and long-established historic
context.
3.25.
As such, the proposal would result in substantial harm to the significance of
the Grade II Listed Building and consequently detract from the character and
appearance of the Chudleigh Conservation Area.
3.26.
Where substantial harm is caused by a proposal, the National Planning
Policy Framework states at paragraph 201 that:
“Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or total loss of
significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should
refuse consent…”
3.27.
On balance, whilst some very limited public benefits can be attributed to the
introduction of 1no. dwelling in this sustainable location, the resultant harm upon
the significance of the Grade II Listed Building is considered to outweigh any such
benefits. As such, the proposal fails to accord with LP Policy EN5, Policy
CHNDP16 and NPPF Paragraph 201.

40

Neighbouring Amenity:
3.28.
The application proposes the erection of a 2-bed property set over two floors
providing 4 bedspaces. As such, the proposal constitutes a 2B4P property
requiring a minimum of 79sqm of floor space which is comfortably provided for.
Both bedrooms provide for a minimum of 11.5sqm of floor space as required for
double bedrooms.
3.29.
The proposed rear balcony element at first floor level serving the master
bedroom would introduce new lines of direct sight into the first floor habitable room
of the neighbouring property No. 22 Woodway Street.
3.30.
Whilst it is noted that some natural vegetation provides an element of
screening, such a temporary feature cannot be relied upon as a permanent means
of mitigation in this instance. The situation is worsened given the ability for
residents to walk out onto and use the decking area which reduces the distance of
intervisibility (approximately 13m between the balcony and first floor habitable room
of No. 22) and potentially exacerbates concerns over residential amenity (noise,
loss of privacy).
3.31.
As such, the proposal by virtue of the first floor balcony element and its
proximity to the first floor habitable bedroom of No. 22 Woodway Street being
approximately 13m, is likely to allow for new and direct lines of sight giving rise to
intervisibilty and a loss of privacy to the detriment of the amenity and living
conditions of residents at No. 22. As such, the proposal fails to accord with LP
Policy WE8.
Design and Visual Impacts:
3.32.
When viewed in conjunction with the neighbouring property: ‘Rosemount’,
the proposed dwelling would appear subordinate in size and scale mainly due to
the lowered ridge and eaves level as well as the considerate L-shaped design
which ensures an acceptable and functional layout within the site’s constraints.
3.33.
When viewed as part of the wider application site, the siting and handing of
the proposal would seek to both retain and utilise as much remaining space as
possible within the wider courtyard area, effectively avoiding urbanising this scarce
area of open space within Chudleigh.
3.34.
It is somewhat conceded that the bulk of the courtyard area has been
developed with only the application site remaining as any respite from built form.
3.35.
Whilst it is noted that the application site in its current form can be attributed
weight in its ability to break up the built form along Old Exeter Road and Woodway
Street as well as within the walled garden area - effectively providing a break
between buildings - the walled element of the site, along with the considerate
positioning of the building ensures that the proposal is accepted within this position
and would not likely be overly visible from wider vantage points along Woodway
Street and / or Old Exeter Road.
3.36.
Even if elements of the proposal were to be visible above the walled garden
area, they would not be so out of keeping with the urban nature of the immediate
vicinity so as to appear incongruous.

41

3.37.
Some concern is raised however with elements of the proposal which
includes the mix of slate roof tiles and zinc cladding. It would be preferable for the
proposal to maintain an original slate roof across the entirety of the proposal,
particularly given the zinc cladding element would likely be visible for the street
scene. It is felt that the mix palette of materials of the proposal and Rosemount
would likely detract from the character and appearance of the Chudleigh
Conservation Area.
3.38.
It is felt however, that such an issue could be addressed via negotiations or a
suitable planning condition and is not sufficient so as to warrant a reason for
refusal.
3.39.
Other concerns include the proposed amount of glazing within the apex of
the pitched roof elements both at first and ground floor level on both side and rear
elevations.
3.40.
When coupled with the proposed balcony element the proposed glazing is
considered likely to give rise to light spill which may detract from the tranquil nature
of this element of the application site as it currently exists. A more harmonious and
discreet approach would be considered acceptable as part of any revised
application; potentially; sacrificing the apex glazing for the retention of the balcony
element and glazing either side.
3.41.
Whilst some natural screening is in place, it is still considered that the height
of said features would protrude above the walled elements enclosing the site and
as such, views would still be achieved into the site from Woodway Street.
3.42.
As such, the proposal, by virtue of the proposed apex glazing within the rear
projection and side elevation facing Woodway Street, coupled with the proposed
wholly glazed balcony element is considered likely to give rise to an unnecessary
and avoidable amount of light spill which is likely give rise to significant, detrimental
visual impacts, particularly when viewed from the street scene along Woodway
Street. As such, the proposal fails to accord with LP Policies S2, EN2A, EN5 and
WE8 and CHNDP5.
Drainage / Flood Risk:
3.43.
The site is within an urban environment and as such, connection to the
mains sewer and foul drainage can be provided.
3.44.

No concerns are raised in respect of flood risk / drainage.

3.45.

As such, the proposal accords with LP Policy EN4 and Policy CHNDP12.

Ecology / Biodiversity:
3.46.
No concerns are raised in respect of ecology / biodiversity and no objections
have been raised by the council’s ecologist.
3.47.
As such, the proposal accords with LP Policies EN8, EN9, EN10 and EN11
and Policies CHNDP9 and CHNDP10.

42

Highway Safety / Access:
3.48.
The application site is well-served by an existing access from Old Exeter
Road. The proposal shall provide for 2no. car parking space and this is considered
acceptable.
3.49.

As such, the proposal accords with LP Policy S9 and CHNDP4.

Trees:
3.50.

The council’s arboriculturalist raises no concerns with regard to on-site trees.

3.51.

The proposal accords with LP Policy EN12.

4. POLICY DOCUMENTS
Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033
STRATEGY POLICIES:
S1A Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development
S1 Sustainable Development Criteria
S2 Quality Development
S9 Sustainable Transport
STRATEGY PLACES:
S20 Chudleigh
S21 Villages
S23 Neighbourhood Plans
PROSPEROUS ECONOMY:
EC4 Working from Home.
WELLBEING:
WE8 – Domestic Extensions, Ancillary Domestic Curtilage Buildings and Boundary
Treatments.
QUALITY ENVIRONMENT:
EN2A Landscape Protection and Enhancement
EN4 Flood Risk
EN5 Heritage Assets
EN8 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
EN9 Important Habitats and Features
EN10 European Wildlife Sites
EN11 Legally Protected and Priority Species
EN12 Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows
Chudleigh Neighbourhood Plan Policies (‘CHNDP’):

43

Policy CHNDP4 – Residential Parking
Policy CHNDP5: Housing Design
Policy CHNDP9: Biodiversity
Policy CHNDP12: Sustainability
Policy CHNDP10: Protection of the South Hams SAC
Policy CHNDP16: Design in the Conservation Area
National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance.
5. CONSULTEES
Trees: “There are no arboricultural objections to the proposal, as no significant trees will
be adversely affected.”
DCC Highways: Standing Advice applies.
DCC Archaeology: “I refer to the above application. The proposed development lies
within the historic core of Chudleigh and within the Conservation area.
The town itself is first documented in the 12th century, while the application area lies in a
part of the town that appears to have been developed in the 18th or 19th centuries.
However, the extent of the early settlement is unknown and, as such, groundworks for the
construction of the proposed development have the potential to expose and destroy
archaeological and artefactual deposits associated with the medieval and later settlement
in the town.
The impact of development upon the archaeological resource here should be mitigated by
a programme of archaeological work that should investigate, record and analyse the
archaeological evidence that will otherwise be destroyed by the proposed development.
The Historic Environment Team recommends that this application should be supported by
the submission of a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) setting out a programme of
archaeological work to be undertaken in mitigation for the loss of heritage assets with
archaeological interest. The WSI should be based on national standards and guidance
and be approved by the Historic Environment Team.
If a Written Scheme of Investigation is not submitted prior to determination the Historic
Environment Team would advise, for the above reasons and in accordance with paragraph
199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and with the supporting text in
paragraph 5.17 of the Teignbridge Local Plan Policy EN5 (adopted 2013), that any
consent your Authority may be minded to issue should carry the condition as worded
below, based on model Condition 55 as set out in Appendix A of Circular 11/95, whereby:

44

‘No development shall take place until the developer has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation
(WSI) which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out at all times in accordance with the
approved scheme, or such other details as may be subsequently agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure, in accordance with paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and the supporting text in paragraph 5.17 of the Teignbridge Local Plan
Policy EN5 (adopted 2013), that an appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence
that may be affected by the development.
This pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the archaeological works are
agreed and implemented prior to any disturbance of archaeological deposits by the
commencement of preparatory and/or construction works.
I would envisage a suitable programme of work as taking the form of a staged programme
of archaeological works, commencing with the excavation of a series of evaluative
trenches to determine the presence and significance of any heritage assets with
archaeological interest that will be affected by the development. Based on the results of
this initial stage of works the requirement and scope of any further archaeological
mitigation can be determined and implemented either in advance of or during construction
works. This archaeological mitigation work may take the form of full area excavation in
advance of groundworks or the monitoring and recording of groundworks associated with
the construction of the proposed development to allow for the identification, investigation
and recording of any exposed archaeological or artefactual deposits. The results of the
fieldwork and any post-excavation analysis undertaken would need to be presented in an
appropriately detailed and illustrated report, and any finds and archive deposited in
accordance with relevant national and local guidelines.
I will be happy to discuss this further with you, the applicant or their agent. The Historic
Environment Team can also provide the applicant with advice of the scope of the works
required, as well as contact details for archaeological contractors who would be able to
undertake this work. Provision of detailed advice to non-householder developers may incur
a charge. For further information on the historic environment and planning, and our
charging
schedule
please
refer
the
applicant
to: https://new.devon.gov.uk/historicenvironment/development-management/.
Conservation Officer: See Main body of the report
6. REPRESENTATIONS
No representations received
7. TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL’S COMMENTS
No Objection
8. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
The proposal would be liable for CIL.
9. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

45



Due to its scale, nature and location this development will not have significant

10. CARBON/ CLIMATE IMPACT


As a minor proposal, the carbon impacts of this development would be limited.
Were permission to be granted, an informative encouraging the use of low carbon
construction techniques and technologies would be applied alongside consideration
of Chudleigh NDP policies.

11. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights Act, and
in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In
arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable
development rights and expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the
wider community interests, as expressed through third party interests / the Development
Plan and Central Government Guidance.

Business Manager – Strategic Place

46

Agenda Item 6d

PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT
CHAIRMAN: Cllr Mike Haines

APPLICATION FOR
CONSIDERATION:

EXMINSTER - 20/00639/FUL - Rear Of Exminster House ,
Miller Way - Six dwellings and associated works

APPLICANT:

Mr G Salter

CASE OFFICER

Gary Crawford

WARD MEMBERS:

Cllr Alison Foden
Cllr Charles Nuttall
Cllr Andrew Swain

VIEW PLANNING FILE:

https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planning/forms/planning-applicationdetails/?Type=Application&Refval=20/00639/FUL&MN

47

Kenn Valley

20/00639/FUL - Rear Of Exminster House Miller Way Exminster Devon EX6 8FN

¯

Crown Copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100024292

1:1,150

48

0
0

0.005
0.01

0.01
0.02

0.02 mi
0.04 km

1.

REASON FOR REPORT
Councillor Nuttall has requested that this application be referred to the Planning
Committee for the following reasons:
- the site would appear overdeveloped as the proposed building would be
considered overbearing and not in keeping with the surrounding properties; it is
understood that Exminster House was in the past considered for listing suggesting
that the proposed building would be out of character
- the proposed development would not provide affordable rental properties in the
Parish, contrary to the Local Plan (LPP) S21 Villages (even more so in the draft
revised plan currently under consultation) and WE2 Affordable Housing Site Targets
- there are inconsistencies between the planning statement and the design and
access statement regarding the number of bedrooms in the new units, the provision
of a 20-cycle bicycle store, etc.

2.

RECOMMENDATION

SUBJECT TO completion of a S106 agreement to provide an off-site affordable
housing contribution of 50% of the 2 bed dwelling contribution,
PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to conditions covering the following matters,
the precise number and content of which to be determined by the Business
Manager – Strategic Place, under delegated authority:
1. Standard 3 year time limit for commencement of development;
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and
documents;
3. Construction management plan including CEMP;
4. The development above damp proof course level shall not take place until details of
the external materials and construction details have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;
5. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be
present at the site then no further development shall be carried out until the
developer has submitted to, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning
Authority for an investigation and risk assessment and, where necessary, a
remediation strategy and verification plan detailing how this unsuspected
contamination shall be dealt with;
6. Surface water drainage from the proposed development hereby approved shall be
provided in accordance with the submitted drainage details;
7. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Landscape Plan;
8. The development above damp proof course level shall not take place until details of
bat and bird box installation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority;
9. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, bin storage details
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
10. The dwellings hereby approved shall not be brought into use until the parking areas
detailed on the approved plans have been completed and these areas shall
thereafter be retained for the life of the development;
11. Rear rooflights on units 1 & 5 shall be fixed shut;

49

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no development of
the types described in Classes A, AA, B, C, D, E, F, G and H of Part 1 of Schedule
2 and Part 2 of Schedule 2 shall be constructed (other than those expressly
authorised by this permission).
3.

DESCRIPTION
The Application Site
The wider application site, hosts Exminster House, a three storey building with an
existing single storey rear extension which is in use as residential apartments.
Exminster House was previously in use as offices and was originally nurses’
accommodation associated with Exe Vale Hospital. The site features a parking area
to the front of Exminster House and communal gardens to the rear. The communal
garden to the rear is slightly raised above the level of the main building. The
application site is located within the settlement limit of Exminster. Previous
decisions have confirmed it is not listed / curtilage listed.

3.1

The Application
This application seeks permission for the erection of a detached block of six
apartments in a ‘T shape’ within the communal garden area to the rear of Exminster
House. The new building would feature a hipped roofed terrace of five dwellings
with a colonnade to the front of the terrace with a flat roofed sixth dwelling attached
to the centre of the terrace. The new building would feature red brick walls to match
the existing building, slate on the hipped roof and the flat roofed element would
have a green roof. The new building would be sited 2.95m from the rear elevation of
the singe storey rear extension of Exminster House at its closest point.

3.2

Planning History
There are a number of previous applications relating to Exminster House but the
most relevant are:

3.3

3.4



15/01912/NPA: Application for Prior Approval under Part 3 Class O and paragraph
W for change of use from offices to 40 flats. Refused 3/9/2015.



Appeal against the refusal of 15/01912/NPA: Allowed 2/2/2016.



19/00195/PE: Proposed new building to rear of property for 8-9 flats for rental
purposes. Advised on 23/4/2019 that the proposal was unlikely to be supported due
to concerns with regards to the design of the development, its impact on the setting
of Exminster House and its impact on the residential amenity of the existing
occupiers of Exminster House.
Main issues
The main issues for consideration are:


The principle of the development/sustainability;



Affordable housing;



Visual impact;

50



3.5

Impact of the development on the residential amenity of the occupiers of
surrounding properties;
 Impact on trees;
 Land drainage/flood risk;
 Highway safety;
 Impact on ecology/biodiversity;
Principle of the development/sustainability
The application site is located within the Exminster settlement limit as depicted in
the Local Plan. As such, the principle of new dwellings in this location is deemed
acceptable, subject to compliance with other relevant policies of the Local Plan.

Affordable housing
3.6

The Council’s Housing Enabling Officer has detailed in her consultation response
that under Policy WE2 (Affordable Housing Site Targets) of the Local Plan, it has
previously been agreed that the affordable housing requirement is one affordable
unit and that a ground floor one bedroom unit would be acceptable. An offsite
contribution, would be required to be the up to date cost of provision of a 2 bed
dwelling, reduced by 50% in recognition of the scale of the proposal and
government guidance on seeking contributions from schemes of less than 10 units.

3.7

Whilst the applicant did propose providing an on-site affordable unit, following
discussions with the Council’s Housing Enabling officers, the applicant is now
proposing to provide an off-site affordable housing contribution of £46,770 (2019
values / prices) and this would be secured via a Section 106 agreement.

Visual impact
3.8

Exminster House was built in 1935 as nurses’ accommodation for the adjoining Exe
Vale Hospital, the former Devon County Pauper Lunatic Asylum built by 1845, and
listed grade II* in 1985. The Council argued in refusing application 15/01912/NPA
that Exminster House was curtilage-listed, however, the Planning Inspectorate
disagreed with the Council and allowed the appeal against the refusal of application
15/01912/NPA in 2016. Nevertheless, Exminster House is considered to be a nondesignated heritage asset.

3.9

The new apartment block would be located less than 3m from the rear elevation of
Exminster House and the siting of the new apartment block within the communal
gardens to the rear would erode the setting of Exminster House. However, whilst
the new apartment block would be positioned at a higher level to Exminster House
due to the rise in ground levels, it is considered that the single / one and a half
storey nature of the new block would appear subservient to the main building.
Furthermore, it is deemed that the design and materials of the proposed new block

51

are appropriate and would respect the character and appearance of Exminster
House. Whilst the proposed development would have an impact upon the setting of
the non-designated heritage asset, given the large expanse of parking to the front of
Exminster House, and given that the new apartment block would be located to the
rear of Exminster House where it would not be particularly visible when viewed from
the public realm, it is considered that, on balance, the public benefits of the
proposal (through the delivery of 6 new dwellings and an affordable housing
contribution) outweigh the limited harm to the setting of the non-designated heritage
asset.

3.10

It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in the loss of external amenity
space and the new apartment block would be located in fairly close proximity to the
rear elevation of Exminster House. However, due to the size of the plot, it is
considered that the application site is capable of acceptably absorbing the
development and the proposal would not constitute an overdevelopment of the site
and nor would it appear unacceptably out of keeping in terms of pattern of
development.

Impact of the development on the residential amenity of the occupiers of
surrounding properties
3.11

Due to the distance between the proposed new apartment block and, both the
existing apartments at Exminster House and the neighbouring properties in Miller
Way, it is deemed that the proposal would not result in any detrimentally harmful
overbearing or overshadowing impacts upon neighbouring properties. As the
windows in the rear elevation of Exminster House serve the corridors to the
apartments within the main building, it is considered that there would not be any
significantly harmful intervisibility impacts the new apartment block and the main
building.

3.12

Officers do have concerns with regards to possible overlooking impacts towards
No.2 Miller Way from the two proposed rooflights in the north west elevation which
serve Units 1 and 5 of the new apartment block. A condition requiring these
windows to be fixed shut will be applied. In terms of noise and disturbance, it is
deemed that the proposal would not result in any significantly worse impacts upon
neighbouring properties than the existing situation.

3.13

It is considered that the internal floor area of the proposed new apartments is of an
acceptable size. It is acknowledged that the siting of the new apartment block within
the communal gardens of Exminster House would reduce the amount of external
amenity space for the existing occupiers of Exminster House whilst also resulting in
the provision of six more unts. As part of the proposal, an unused tarmac area
which runs to the rear of Exminster House would be landscaped to increase the

52

amount of external amenity space for the residents of Exminster House and
residents are also able to access the large area of natural open space to the front of
the building via pedestrian gates from the car park. As such, it is considered that the
loss of an area of existing external amenity space is acceptable.

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Impact on trees
The proposed development requires the removal of four large conifer trees and a
number of smaller ornamental trees. The Council’s Senior Arboricultural Officer has
been consulted on this application and he has commented that the removal of the
trees will not have a significant adverse effect upon the sylvan nature of the area.
Following the receipt of a revised landscape plan during the course of the
application, the Senior Arboricultural Officer has confirmed there are no
arboricultural objections to the proposal.
Land drainage/flood risk
The Council’s Drainage Engineers initially commented that the applicant had not
provided any information in relation to the disposal of surface water from the site to
enable the Drainage Engineers to make observations on the proposal. However,
following the submission of a proposed drainage strategy during the course of the
application, the Drainage Engineers have confirmed that they have no objections to
the proposals and South West Water have confirmed acceptance of the flows to the
public sewer.
Highway safety
Concerns have been raised with regards to an increase in parking demand from the
proposed development. However, Devon County Council’s Highways department
have been consulted on this application and they have commented that they
consider that the amount of traffic generated by the development would not have a
severe impact on the existing highway network. In addition, the Highway Authority
have also noted in their consultation response for this application that there is
sufficient parking within the application site to serve the proposed development to
stop vehicles over-spilling onto the existing highway. The proposal also includes the
provision of a bike storage area to serve the new development.
Impact on ecology/biodiversity
The application site is within 10km of the Exe Estuary SPA and Dawlish Warren
SAC and is therefore subject to the requirements of the 2017 Conservation of
Habitat and Species Regulations. More information about these regulations as they
apply in this area can be found here
https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planning/biodiversity/exe-estuarydawlish-warrenhabitat-mitigation/ .
In the absence of bespoke mitigation, a Habitat Mitigation Regulations contribution
of £876 per additional dwelling is required to offset in-combination recreation

53

impacts on the SPA and/or SAC. A net gain of 6 dwellings is proposed, i.e. a total of
£5,256.00 is required to be contributed.
3.19

To mitigate against impacts of the development on these habitats the applicant has
elected to make an upfront Habitat Mitigation Contribution of £5,256.00.

3.20

With this in place, the LPA, as Competent Authority, is able to conclude that there
will be no effect on the integrity of the European site(s) such that this does not
constitute any reason for refusal of the development.

3.21

A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) has been submitted with the application
which details that there will be no impacts from the proposal on protected species or
habitats on the site. The PEA recommends that the provision of bat/bird boxes and
the erection of Heras fencing adjacent to the hedgerow along the western site
boundary should be made a specific condition of any planning approval.

3.22

The submitted Design & Access Statement details that a number of measures for
biodiversity will be included with any approved scheme, including:

3.23



Birds boxes to be placed within suitable mature trees along the south west
boundary and on the new building.



External barn owl box to be placed in mature trees along the south west
boundary.



Significant areas of new native planting.



A number of native oak trees to be planted.



Hedgehog boxes.

As such, subject to a condition requiring details of the proposed ecological
enhancement measures to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, it is deemed that the proposal would have an acceptable impact
on biodiversity. The submitted Arboricultural Assessment details that Heras fencing
will be erected in front of the hedgerow on the western site boundary.
Other matters

3.24

The Council’s Waste and Cleansing department have commented that they are able
to support this application in principle, but they are unable to confirm from the
submitted plans whether the allocated bin store is large enough to house the
number of bins needed for the 6 units. It is recommended that a condition is
included with any permission requiring further information regarding bin storage to

54

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
occupation of the dwellings.
3.25

3.26

4.

The Council’s Environmental Health department have recommended that a
contaminated land condition is included with any planning permission.

Conclusions
The proposed development is considered to be acceptable and therefore it is
recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and a
Section 106 agreement.
POLICY DOCUMENTS
Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033
S1A (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development)
S1 (Sustainable Development Criteria)
S2 (Quality Development)
S7 (Carbon Emission Targets)
S21 (Villages)
S21A (Settlement limits)
S23 (Neighbourhood Plans)
WE2 (Affordable Housing Site Targets)
EN3 (Carbon Reduction Plans)
EN4 (Flood Risk)
EN5 (Heritage Assets)
EN7 (Contaminated Land)
EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement)
EN11 (Legally Protected and Priority Species)
EN12 (Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows)
Exminster Neighbourhood Plan
National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

5.

CONSULTEES
TDC Conservation Officer:
The Design & Access statement has revealed the thought behind the design and
the materials aesthetic. In such close proximity to the extant block the approach is
clearly the right one, whether a building in this position ultimately respects it is
another question. It is certainly true that the historic relationship between the former
hospital and Exminster House has been eroded, and the impact on their settings
would be neutral, even negligible. The Historic Statement is correct in arguing that
while Exminster House is itself reasonably well preserved (it has lost its original rear
2-storey pyramidal-roofed block) its setting has been transformed radically by the
housing estate to the west, and the motorway to the north, and a very large

55

expanse of car park to the east. The only real question is whether development will
transform the one remaining area of green setting that preserves something of the
original milieu, even if it is of the latter half of the 20th century. However well
designed it certainly will. Whether the loss is worth the gain in housing provision
should be decided on planning grounds.

TDC Senior Arboricultural Officer:
Comments dated 12 May 2020
There is a hold objection subject to the submission of an agreed soft landscape
plan
The application requires the removal of four large conifer trees and a number of
smaller ornamental trees.
The removal of the trees will not have a significant adverse effect upon the sylvan
nature of the area.
Two landscape plans have been submitted in support of the application. The
landscape plans do not appear to show details of soft landscape works and/or tree
planting.
Owing to the above a planting plan is required showing the planting of a substantial
number of high quality container grown trees. The landscape plan should include
the following text:
Trees will not be planted until written approval has been provided by the Council's
Arboricultural Officer that he/she is satisfied with the condition and form of the
trees to be planted. Any trees delivered to site or planted will comply with the
British Standard Trees: from nursery to independence in the landscape –
Recommendations BS 8545:2014. It is accepted The Council reserves the right to
reject, and require the replacement of any trees that do not comply with the above
British Standard either prior to or following the planting of the trees. If any trees
planted as part of an approved landscape plan within a period of five years from
planting is removed, dies or become seriously damaged/diseased it/they shall be
replaced in the next planting season with one of similar size, species and nursery
stock.
Comments dated 13 May 2020
Following the receipt of the revised landscape plan, I confirm there are no
arboricultural objections to the proposal
TDC Drainage Engineers:
Comments dated 28 May 2020
The applicant has not provided any information in relation to the disposal of
surface water from the site to enable me to make observations on the proposal.
The applicant must therefore submit a surface water drainage management plan
which demonstrates how surface water from the development will be disposed of
in a manner that does not increase flood risk elsewhere, in accordance with the

56

principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems. The applicant is therefore advised to
refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Design Guidance.
Comments dated 3 June 2021
Further to discussions with AWP consulting engineers and the submission of the
proposed drainage strategy as presented within Drawing No. 1085-01-PDL-1001A and submitted calculations in support of the application. I have no further
objections with the proposals and SWW have confirmed acceptance of the flows to
the public sewer.

TDC Environmental Health:
A contaminated land condition should be included with any approval.

TDC Waste and Cleansing:
I am able to support this application in principle, but I am unable to confirm from the
plans whether the allocated bin store is large enough to house the number of bins
needed for the 6 units.
Allowing the standard containment requirements and assuming communal waste
storage will be provided, allowance should be made for the following bins;





1 x 1100 litre bin OR 3 x 360 litre bins for residual waste
2 x 240 litre bins and 2 x 120 litre bins for recyclable waste (paper, glass, cans,
plastics and cardboard)
6 x 23 litre food waste caddies
We would recommend capacity for at least 1 x 240 litre bin for garden waste as this
is a subscribed service and we have no way of knowing if a subscription would be
made.
The approximate dimensions of these bins are provided in the table below.
Bin size
120 l
180 l
240 l
360 l
660 l
1100 l
55 l boxes
23 l food caddy

Width
505
470
585
750
1265
1265
450
320

Depth
555
770
740
880
850
1190
600
345

Height
975
1110
1110
1115
1250
1470
370
405

As the bin requirement is designed to be flexible, allowance should be made for
extra bins if necessary.

57

The size of any doorway or entrance to the storage area should be large enough to
allow removal and replacement of the required 1100 litre bin. I will need to see
further detailed plans indicating how the waste and recycling containers will be
stored and presented for collection at the site. The bin store would also need to
allow for all bins to have unrestricted access, without the need for the residents or
the collection crews to move bins to access others.
In addition the quality of the access road should not restrict the ability of our
vehicles to access the site, if we are required to access with the vehicles. We have
had particular issues with block paved areas in-filled with sand to improve
permeability being unsuitable for use by our collection vehicles due to their weight
(up to 26 tonnes).
We should also have a disclaimer signed by the land owner, if the vehicles are to
enter the site to empty the bins from the bin store, stating that Teignbridge District
Council would not be responsible for any damage caused to the road by our
vehicles. If it is not the intention for the vehicles not to enter the site, the containers
will either need to be at the adopted highway or within 10 metres of the adopted
highway, therefore they will either need to be put out by someone, but this does not
usually work unless there is a caretaker for the site who can facilitate this, or the bin
store will need to be no further than 10 metres from the entrance to the site.
TDC Housing Enabling Officer:
Overview
Exminster House sits within generous grounds on the northern edge of Exminster,
to the south of the M5. The main building was previously an office building and was
converted into flats in 2016-17. The flats are rented out as private market rent
apartments. The aim of the project is to add an extension to the main house to
provide a further 6 new rental units that provide high quality, well designed and
adaptable private rented accommodation.
Background
Affordable housing advice was previously provided by Housing Enabling for
19/00195/PE. This initially advised that the affordable housing requirement for a
possible 8 or 9 unit scheme would be an off-site contribution equivalent to the cost
of providing 2no. 2 bed apartments moderated by 50% to take into account the
National guidance regarding Affordable Housing thresholds. Further advice was
sought on a 6 unit scheme for market rented units and the principle for the previous
offsite contribution advice was applied with costs uplifted in accordance with the
BCIS index. There was also discussion regarding the possibility of an affordable
private rent unit on site, given that the scheme is, in effect, a Build to Rent scheme.
It was Housing Enabling’s understanding at that time that the applicant was keen to
provide affordable housing in line with the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) for
Build to Rent developments see: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/build-to-rent.
Notwithstanding that, the Planning Statement submitted for this application refers to
the provision of affordable housing as an off-site contribution secured through a
S106 agreement. However, Housing Enabling have had a further meeting with the
applicant (2nd July 2020) and they have confirmed that they are willing to provide
one affordable private rented unit on-site in line with the PPG for affordable housing

58

on Build to Rent developments, provided that it can be done in a way that is
compatible with the overall management policies and ethos of the scheme.
Affordable Housing policy requirements
Under policy WE2 it has previously been agreed that the affordable housing
requirement is one affordable unit and that a ground floor one bedroom unit would
be acceptable. With regard to an offsite contribution, as previously advised, uprated
to Nov 2019 BCIS rates this would total £93,540 less 50%, £46,770.
The Council is in the process of developing our policy for Affordable Private Rent
and we are keen to work collaboratively with developers on this. The points below
highlight key issues discussed on 2nd July, and areas for further work/discussion to
agree how the affordable private rent will work in practice and matters to be covered
in the S106.
Rent levels
The rent for Affordable Private Rent should be at least 20% below market rents and
ideally affordable for someone on LHA. Current information provided on rents at
Exminster House is between £585 to £650 pcm for one bed with study. With 20%
discount this would be between £468 and £520. This suggests that 20% discount
for a one bed unit will be affordable, but this does need to take into account that
current LHA rates are inflated for Covid 19 for one year and they may drop back to
pre Covid levels.
The table below shows market rents as recorded by the Valuation Office for last year (latest
data published June 2020) and LHA rates for South Devon and Exeter Broad Rental Market
Areas.

Teignbridge
VOA
Sep 18-19
1 bed
2 bed
Exeter VOA
Sep 18-19
1 bed
2 bed

Mean
pcm

Lower
Quartile

Median

Upper

501
657

450
600

500
650

550
700

626
795

575
715

620
775

675
850

LHA
S Devon
BRMA
449
599
Exeter BRMA
570
679

S106 and management arrangements
The affordable private rent home will be secured by a S106, but it does not have to
be transferred to a registered provider (RP) landlord. The affordable private rent
home should be under common management control, along with the market rent
build to rent homes. The PPG requires that the S106 will need to set out the
process for managing affordable private rent units and include the parameters of
the lettings agreement, the rent levels, apportionment of the homes across the
development, a management and service agreement, and a marketing agreement
setting out how their availability is to be publicised.
The section 106 should also require the build to rent scheme operator to produce
an annual statement to authorities, confirming the approach to letting the affordable

59

units, their ongoing status, and clearly identifying how the scheme is meeting the
overall affordable housing level required in the planning permission.
Any affordable private rent homes included as part of a scheme, through a section
106 agreement, are provided specifically as a community benefit in perpetuity. The
PPG requires that the section 106 should set out what should happen if any homes
within a build to rent scheme are disposed of, including the withdrawal of affordable
private rent homes at any time, or conversion of private market rent homes to
another tenure before the end of a covenant period. This can take the form of
alternative provision of other affordable housing, as defined in national planning
policy. Alternatively, clawback arrangements can be used, the proceeds of which
should be spent on the provision of alternative affordable housing, for the benefit of
the community.

Tenancies
PPG specifies that the market Build to Rent units and the affordable private rent
units should be let on longer tenancies of three years or more with provision for
tenants to end the tenancy sooner without penalty and this would be set out in the
S106 or possibly as a condition of the planning permission. Further discussion is
needed as to how this is done in practice – e.g. will it be a three year fixed term
tenancy with break clause, or would a shorter fixed term with periodic tenancy
thereafter be acceptable. Housing Enabling will seek further clarification on this and
examples of practice in other authorities or where RPs use ASTs.

Eligibility and allocation process
The PPG states that the eligibility criteria for the affordable private rent homes
should be set out in the section 106 agreement. Eligibility should be determined
with regard to local household income levels, related to local rent levels and could
be from the Statutory Housing list, taking into account the affordability of the homes
to those on the list or in the absence of an established local intermediate housing
list, developers and authorities may consider assembling a unique dataset for the
development. It is proposed that the unit is advertised through Devon Home Choice,
the Devon-wide allocation scheme for affordable homes, with a one off charge to
the landlord of the affordable private rent unit. Housing Enabling will discuss with
Devon Home Choice (DHC) the extent to which specific criteria for potential tenants
can be set out in the DHC advert. TDC no longer registers people in relatively
minor housing need (previously Band E) on DHC so targeting local people who
would be seeking this type of tenure could be problematic. We will explore whether
targeting the unit for key workers may be a way forward. There would usually be a
local connection cascade set out in the S106 – see TDC template.
Deposits and rent in advance
For existing market rent units at Exminster House, one month rent in advance and
deposit equivalent to up to 6 weeks rent, is required from new tenants. It was
discussed at the meeting on 2nd July that this may not be affordable for someone
who is eligible for affordable housing and by definition cannot meet their housing

60

needs through the market. It was agreed that the applicant and TDC will explore
ways to accommodate this, ie deposit guarantee arrangements or waiving/reducing
the deposit requirement.
Design and integration
In line with TDC Local Plan policy WE2 and WE4 the affordable and market housing
must be visually indistinguishable whilst allowing for buildings to be individual and
have character. Affordable and market dwellings should be intermixed within the
site and concentrations of Affordable Dwellings should be avoided. The Nationally
Described Space Standards should be used as a guide for the size and layout of
affordable units see: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/technicalhousing-standards-nationally-described-space-standard
Housing Need
There are typically around 1000 people on the Housing Register who are in housing
need in Teignbridge. This may increase following the economic impact of the Covid
19 pandemic. Overall affordable housing need at May 2020 recorded on Devon
Home Choice, the Councils allocation scheme, was:
All Applicants

Band
Band
Band
Band
Band
Band
Total

1
A
B
C
D
E

2
1
109
80
304
1
495

3
1
54
100
100
1
256

Bedroom
4
1
25
116
28
170

5
1
16
37
4

8
2
1

58

11

Total
4
212
335
437
2
990

The largest proportion of people in the highest priority for rented affordable housing
require one or two bedroom properties. However, turnover in existing larger units of
affordable housing stock is low, so that demand for larger units of affordable
housing continues to be significant.

Lifetime homes (or equivalent) and accessible/adaptable homes
Nationally Britain has an aging population and both market and affordable housing
should be designed where possible to meet the needs of elderly residents, both in
age designated schemes and dwellings designed for any age. A significant
proportion of affordable housing applicants on Devon Home Choice have mobility
issues and require step free dwellings, with some requiring fully accessible homes.
There is therefore a need for affordable homes to be built to Approved Document
2010, M4(2) Cat 2 accessible and adaptable standard on most sites in the District.
Developers are encouraged to consider accessibility and suitability for older
residents in the design of all homes, market and affordable, even where they are
not specified adaptable or accessible units.

61

Climate Change
The Council is committed to tackling the Climate emergency and mitigating its
impact and new homes should be designed to utilise renewable energy for heating
and hot water and provide low water consumption fixtures/fittings. This not only has
environmental benefits but also reduces running costs and makes the units more
affordable to residents.
Conclusion
Previous pre-application advice and discussion with the applicant concluded that as
a Build to Rent development the scheme could meet the affordable housing
requirement of one unit with an on-site affordable private rent unit. This would be a
welcome contribution to expanding the diversity of the affordable housing offer in
the District and the Council is keen to develop policies and allocation procedures for
Build to Rent to accommodate similar applications elsewhere. Housing enabling are
available to discuss further the detail of how this would work and will forward the
standard Heads of Terms for the S106 for the applicant to draft an agreement
adapted to the Build to Rent requirements as set out above and in the PPG.

DCC Highways:
Observations:
The site is accessed off Miller Way which is a county Highway restricted to 30 mph.
There have been no collisions reported to/by the police between 01/01/2014 and
31/12/2018.
The amount of traffic generated by the development will not have a severe impact
on the existing Highway network and there is sufficient parking to stop vehicles
over-spilling onto the existing Highway.
Recommendation:
The Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment, on behalf of Devon County
Council, as local highway authority, has no objection to the proposed development
Historic England:
On the basis of the information available to date, we do not wish to offer any
comments. We suggest that you seek the views of your specialist conservation and
archaeological advisers, as relevant.

6.

REPRESENTATIONS
A site notice was erected.

62

Six letters of objection have been received which raised the following planning
issues:
 Overbearing.
 Loss of light and overshadowing.
 Overlooking and loss of privacy.
 Noise and disturbance.
 Overdevelopment.
 Increase in traffic.
 Loss of wildlife habitat.
 Concentration of housing density is not in keeping with the surrounding area.

TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL’S COMMENTS

7.

Exminster Parish Council object to the application for the following reasons:

8.



The site appeared over-developed. The building was considered overbearing and
not in keeping with surrounding properties.



The rear of the proposed building was approximately 4m away from the rear of 2
Miller Way and would impact on the amenity of the residents.



The development would not provide affordable rental opportunities in the parish;
contrary to Local Plan Policies (LPP) S21 Villages and WE2 Affordable Housing
Site Targets.



The development would result in the loss of open space and the communal area for
occupants of the flats in Exminster House.



There were inconsistencies regarding the numbers of bedrooms in the new units,
and provision of a 20-cycle, bicycle store to supplement on-site parking in section 9
of the application.



If the application was approved, a preservation order should be made for the
existing boundary hedge to maintain biodiversity.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
The proposed gross internal area is 464.28 sq m. The existing gross internal area
in lawful use for a continuous period of at least six months within the three years
immediately preceding this grant of planning permission is 0 sq m. The CIL liability
for this development is £129,376.76. This is based on 464.28 net m2 at £200 per
m2 and includes an adjustment for inflation in line with the BCIS since the
introduction of CIL.

63

9.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Due to its scale, nature and location this development will not have significant
effects on the environment and therefore is not considered to be EIA Development.

10.

CARBON/ CLIMATE IMPACT
The submitted Design & Access Statement details the following:

11.



Any surplus material that is produced on site will be carefully managed and
segregated in skips for off-site recycling.



Materials and serves will be sourced locally where possible with any timber
sourced from sustainable managed forests.



The buildings external and internal envelopes will be highly insulated and
detailed to minimize air leakage.



Low energy LED lighting will be provided wherever possible and, smart
metering will also be provided to allow residents to properly understand and
control their energy usage.

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights Act, and
in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In
arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable
development rights and expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the
wider community interests, as expressed through third party interests / the Development
Plan and Central Government Guidance.

Business Manager – Strategic Place

64

Agenda Item 7
TEIGNBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN: Cllr Mike Haines

DATE:

17 August 2021

REPORT OF:

Business Manager – Strategic Place

SUBJECT:

Appeal Decisions

1

21/00004/NOND CHUDLEIGH - Stancott Farm Chudleigh
ET
Erection of five residential dwellings to replace existing
agricultural barns and workshop while retaining
workshop office for bat roost
APPEAL DISMISSED - DELEGATED

2

21/00011/REF

NEWTON ABBOT - Flat 1 The Old Rectory
Appeal against the refusal of planning application
20/01889/HOU - Retention of fence
APPEAL DISMISSED - DELEGATED

3

4

20/00052/REF

21/00022/REF

ILSINGTON - Land Adjacent To Little Liverton Business
Park Liverton
Appeal against the refusal of planning application
19/0122/MAJ - Outline - Business units (Use Classes
B1, B2 and B8) (approval sought for access and
landscaping)
APPEAL ALLOWED - CTTEE
ABBOTSKERSWELL - Land At NGR 285048 69125
Totnes Road
Appeal against the refusal of 20/02363/NPA for Prior
Approval under Part 3 Class Q (a) and (b) and
paragraph W of the GDPO for change of use of
agricultural building to a dwelling
APPEAL DISMISSED - DELEGATED

65

TEIGNBRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE FULL TEXT OF THESE APPEAL DECISIONS IS
AVAILABLE ON THE COUNCIL'S WEBSITE

66

